

THE CITY OF WINNIPEG

TENDER

TENDER NO. 293-2021

SUPPLY AND DELIVERY OF RECTANGULAR RAPID FLASHING BEACONS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART A - BID SUBMISSION

Form A: Bid/Proposal Form B: Prices

PART B - BIDDING PROCEDURES

B1.	Contract Title	1
B2.	Submission Deadline	1
B3.	Enquiries	1
	Confidentiality	1
	Addenda	1
B6.	Substitutes	2
B7.	Bid Submission	3
B8.	Bid	3
B9.	Prices	4
B10.	Disclosure	4
B11.	Conflict of Interest and Good Faith	4
B12.	Qualification	5
B13.	Opening of Bids and Release of Information	6
	Irrevocable Bid	7
B15.	Withdrawal of Bids	7
B16.	Evaluation of Bids	7
B17.	Award of Contract	8
PART C	- GENERAL CONDITIONS	
C0.	General Conditions	1
	- SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS	
Gene		
	General Conditions	1
	Scope of Work	1
	Cooperative Purchase	1
	Definitions	2
	Contract Administrator	2
	Notices	2
	missions	
D7.	Authority to Carry on Business	3
Sche	edule of Work	
D8.	Commencement	3
D9.	Delivery	3
	Liquidated Damages	4
D11.	COVID-19 Schedule Delays	4
D12.	Orders	4
D13.	Returned Goods	4
D14.	Records	5
Meas	surement and Payment	
	Invoices	5
	Payment	6
	Payment Schedule	6
	ranty	
	Warranty	6
	Funding and/or Contribution Agreement Obligations	6
D 10.		0

PART E - SPECIFICATIONS

0011		
E1.	Applicable Specifications	1
E2.	Goods	1
E3.	Approved Products	5

PART B - BIDDING PROCEDURES

B1. CONTRACT TITLE

B1.1 SUPPLY AND DELIVERY OF RECTANGULAR RAPID FLASHING BEACONS

B2. SUBMISSION DEADLINE

- B2.1 The Submission Deadline is 4:00 p.m. Winnipeg time, May 18, 2021.
- B2.2 The Contract Administrator or the Manager of Materials may extend the Submission Deadline by issuing an addendum at any time prior to the time and date specified in B2.1.

B3. ENQUIRIES

- B3.1 All enquiries shall be directed to the Contract Administrator identified in D5.1.
- B3.2 If the Bidder finds errors, discrepancies or omissions in the Tender, or is unsure of the meaning or intent of any provision therein, the Bidder shall promptly notify the Contract Administrator of the error, discrepancy or omission at least five (5) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B3.3 Responses to enquiries which, in the sole judgment of the Contract Administrator, require a correction to or a clarification of the Tender will be provided by the Contract Administrator to all Bidders by issuing an addendum.
- B3.4 Responses to enquiries which, in the sole judgment of the Contract Administrator, do not require a correction to or a clarification of the Tender will be provided by the Contract Administrator only to the Bidder who made the enquiry.
- B3.5 The Bidder shall not be entitled to rely on any response or interpretation received pursuant to B3 unless that response or interpretation is provided by the Contract Administrator in writing.
- B3.6 Any enquiries concerning submitting through MERX should be addressed to: MERX Customer Support Phone: 1-800-964-6379 Email: merx@merx.com

B4. CONFIDENTIALITY

- B4.1 Information provided to a Bidder by the City or acquired by a Bidder by way of further enquiries or through investigation is confidential. Such information shall not be used or disclosed in any way without the prior written authorization of the Contract Administrator. The use and disclosure of the confidential information shall not apply to information which:
 - (a) was known to the Bidder before receipt hereof; or
 - (b) becomes publicly known other than through the Bidder; or
 - (c) is disclosed pursuant to the requirements of a governmental authority or judicial order.
- B4.2 The Bidder shall not make any statement of fact or opinion regarding any aspect of the Tender to the media or any member of the public without the prior written authorization of the Contract Administrator.

B5. ADDENDA

B5.1 The Contract Administrator may, at any time prior to the Submission deadline, issue addenda correcting errors, discrepancies or omissions in the Tender, or clarifying the meaning or intent of any provision therein.

- B5.2 The Contract Administrator will issue each addendum at least two (2) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline, or provide at least two (2) Business Days by extending the Submission Deadline.
- B5.3 Addenda will be available on the MERX website at <u>www.merx.com</u>.
- B5.4 The Bidder is responsible for ensuring that he/she has received all addenda and is advised to check the MERX website for addenda regularly and shortly before the Submission Deadline, as may be amended by addendum.
- B5.5 The Bidder shall acknowledge receipt of each addendum in Paragraph 10 of Form A: Bid/Proposal. Failure to acknowledge receipt of an addendum may render a Bid nonresponsive.
- B5.6 Notwithstanding B3, enquiries related to an Addendum may be directed to the Contract Administrator indicated in D5.

B6. SUBSTITUTES

- B6.1 The Work is based on the materials, equipment, methods and products specified in the Tender.
- B6.2 Substitutions shall not be allowed unless application has been made to and prior approval has been granted by the Contract Administrator in writing.
- B6.3 Requests for approval of a substitute will not be considered unless received in writing by the Contract Administrator at least ten (5) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline.
- B6.4 The Bidder shall ensure that any and all requests for approval of a substitute:
 - (a) provide sufficient information and details to enable the Contract Administrator to determine the acceptability of the material, equipment, method or product as either an approved equal or alternative;
 - (b) identify any and all changes required in the applicable Work, and all changes to any other Work, which would become necessary to accommodate the substitute;
 - (c) identify any anticipated cost or time savings that may be associated with the substitute;
 - (d) certify that, in the case of a request for approval as an approved equal, the substitute will fully perform the functions called for by the general design, be of equal or superior substance to that specified, is suited to the same use and capable of performing the same function as that specified and can be incorporated into the Work, strictly in accordance with the Contract;
 - (e) certify that, in the case of a request for approval as an approved alternative, the substitute will adequately perform the functions called for by the general design, be similar in substance to that specified, is suited to the same use and capable of performing the same function as that specified and can be incorporated into the Work, strictly in accordance with the Contract.
- B6.5 The Contract Administrator, after assessing the request for approval of a substitute, may in his/her sole discretion grant approval for the use of a substitute as an "approved equal" or as an "approved alternative", or may refuse to grant approval of the substitute.
- B6.6 The Contract Administrator will provide a response in writing, at least two (2) Business Days prior to the Submission Deadline, to the Bidder who requested approval of the substitute.
- B6.6.1 The Contract Administrator will issue an Addendum, disclosing the approved materials, equipment, methods and products to all potential Bidders. The Bidder requesting and obtaining the approval of a substitute shall be responsible for disseminating information regarding the approval to any person or persons he/she wishes to inform
- B6.7 If the Contract Administrator approves a substitute as an "approved equal", any Bidder may use the approved equal in place of the specified item.

- B6.8 If the Contract Administrator approves a substitute as an "approved alternative", any Bidder bidding that approved alternative may base his/her Total Bid Price upon the specified item but may also indicate an alternative price based upon the approved alternative. Such alternatives will be evaluated in accordance with B16.
- B6.9 No later claim by the Contractor for an addition to the price(s) because of any other changes in the Work necessitated by the use of an approved equal or an approved alternative will be considered.

B7. BID SUBMISSION

- B7.1 The Bid shall consist of the following components:
 - (a) Form A: Bid/Proposal;
 - (b) Form B: Prices.
- B7.2 All components of the Bid shall be fully completed or provided, and submitted by the Bidder no later than the Submission Deadline, with all required entries made clearly and completely.
- B7.3 The Bid shall be submitted electronically through MERX at <u>www.merx.com</u>.
- B7.3.1 Bids will **only** be accepted electronically through MERX.
- B7.4 Bidders are advised that inclusion of terms and conditions inconsistent with the Tender document, including the General Conditions, will be evaluated in accordance with B16.1(a).

B8. BID

- B8.1 The Bidder shall complete Form A: Bid/Proposal, making all required entries.
- B8.2 Paragraph 2 of Form A: Bid/Proposal shall be completed in accordance with the following requirements:
 - (a) if the Bidder is a sole proprietor carrying on business in his/her own name, his/her name shall be inserted;
 - (b) if the Bidder is a partnership, the full name of the partnership shall be inserted;
 - (c) if the Bidder is a corporation, the full name of the corporation shall be inserted;
 - (d) if the Bidder is carrying on business under a name other than his/her own, the business name and the name of every partner or corporation who is the owner of such business name shall be inserted.
- B8.2.1 If a Bid is submitted jointly by two or more persons, each and all such persons shall identify themselves in accordance with B8.2.
- B8.3 In Paragraph 3 of Form A: Bid/Proposal, the Bidder shall identify a contact person who is authorized to represent the Bidder for purposes of the Bid.
- B8.4 Paragraph 13 of Form A: Bid/Proposal shall be signed in accordance with the following requirements:
 - (a) if the Bidder is a sole proprietor carrying on business in his/her own name, it shall be signed by the Bidder;
 - (b) if the Bidder is a partnership, it shall be signed by the partner or partners who have authority to sign for the partnership;
 - (c) if the Bidder is a corporation, it shall be signed by its duly authorized officer or officers;
 - (d) if the Bidder is carrying on business under a name other than his/her own, it shall be signed by the registered owner of the business name, or by the registered owner's authorized officials if the owner is a partnership or a corporation.

- B8.4.1 The name and official capacity of all individuals signing Form A: Bid/Proposal should be entered below such signatures
- B8.5 If a Bid is submitted jointly by two or more persons, the word "Bidder" shall mean each and all such persons, and the undertakings, covenants and obligations of such joint Bidders in the Bid and the Contract, when awarded, shall be both joint and several.

B9. PRICES

- B9.1 The Bidder shall state a price in Canadian funds for each item of the Work identified on Form B: Prices.
- B9.1.1 Prices on Form B: Prices shall include:
 - (a) duty;
 - (b) freight and cartage;
 - (c) Provincial and Federal taxes [except the Goods and Services Tax (GST) and Manitoba Retail Sales Tax (MRST, also known as PST), which shall be extra where applicable] and all charges governmental or otherwise paid;
 - (d) profit and all compensation which shall be due to the Contractor for the Work and all risks and contingencies connected therewith.
- B9.1.2 Prices on Form B: Prices shall not include Environmental Handling Charges (EHC) or fees, which shall be extra where applicable.
- B9.2 The quantities listed on Form B: Prices are to be considered approximate only. The City will use said quantities for the purpose of comparing Bids.
- B9.3 The quantities for which payment will be made to the Contractor are to be determined by the Work actually performed and completed by the Contractor, to be measured as specified in the applicable Specifications.
- B9.4 The Bidder shall enter the Total Bid Price from Form B: Prices into the Total Bid Price field in MERX.
- B9.4.1 Bidders are advised that the calculation indicated in B16.4 will prevail over the Total Bid Price entered in MERX.

B10. DISCLOSURE

- B10.1 Various Persons provided information or services with respect to this Work. In the City's opinion, this relationship or association does not create a conflict of interest because of this full disclosure. Where applicable, additional material available as a result of contact with these Persons is listed below.
- B10.2 The Persons are:
 - (a) n/a

B11. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND GOOD FAITH

- B11.1 Further to C3.2, Bidders, by responding to this Tender, declare that no Conflict of Interest currently exists, or is reasonably expected to exist in the future.
- B11.2 Conflict of Interest means any situation or circumstance where a Bidder or employee of the Bidder proposed for the Work has:
 - (a) other commitments;
 - (b) relationships;
 - (c) financial interests; or

(d) involvement in ongoing litigation;

that could or would be seen to:

- exercise an improper influence over the objective, unbiased and impartial exercise of the independent judgment of the City with respect to the evaluation of Bids or award of the Contract; or
- (ii) compromise, impair or be incompatible with the effective performance of a Bidder's obligations under the Contract;
- (e) has Contractual or other obligations to the City that could or would be seen to have been compromised or impaired as a result of its participation in the Tender process or the Work; or
- (f) has knowledge of confidential information (other than confidential information disclosed by the City in the normal course of the Tender process) of strategic and/or material relevance to the Tender process or to the Work that is not available to other bidders and that could or would be seen to give that Bidder an unfair competitive advantage.
- B11.3 In connection with its Bid, each entity identified in B11.2 shall:
 - (a) avoid any perceived, potential or actual Conflict of Interest in relation to the procurement process and the Work;
 - (b) upon discovering any perceived, potential or actual Conflict of Interest at any time during the Tender process, promptly disclose a detailed description of the Conflict of Interest to the City in a written statement to the Contract Administrator; and
 - (c) provide the City with the proposed means to avoid or mitigate, to the greatest extent practicable, any perceived, potential or actual Conflict of Interest and shall submit any additional information to the City that the City considers necessary to properly assess the perceived, potential or actual Conflict of Interest.
- B11.4 Without limiting B11.3, the City may, in its sole discretion, waive any and all perceived, potential or actual Conflicts of Interest. The City's waiver may be based upon such terms and conditions as the City, in its sole discretion, requires to satisfy itself that the Conflict of Interest has been appropriately avoided or mitigated, including requiring the Bidder to put into place such policies, procedures, measures and other safeguards as may be required by and be acceptable to the City, in its sole discretion, to avoid or mitigate the impact of such Conflict of Interest.
- B11.5 Without limiting B11.3, and in addition to all Contractual or other rights or rights at law or in equity or legislation that may be available to the City, the City may, in its sole discretion:
 - (a) disqualify a Bidder that fails to disclose a perceived, potential or actual Conflict of Interest of the Bidder or any of its employees proposed for the Work;
 - (b) require the removal or replacement of any employees proposed for the Work that has a perceived, actual or potential Conflict of Interest that the City, in its sole discretion, determines cannot be avoided or mitigated;
 - (c) disqualify a Bidder or employees proposed for the Work that fails to comply with any requirements prescribed by the City pursuant to B11.4 to avoid or mitigate a Conflict of Interest; and
 - (d) disqualify a Bidder if the Bidder, or one of its employees proposed for the Work, has a perceived, potential or actual Conflict of Interest that, in the City's sole discretion, cannot be avoided or mitigated, or otherwise resolved.
- B11.6 The final determination of whether a perceived, potential or actual Conflict of Interest exists shall be made by the City, in its sole discretion.

B12. QUALIFICATION

B12.1 The Bidder shall:

- (a) undertake to be in good standing under The Corporations Act (Manitoba), or properly registered under The Business Names Registration Act (Manitoba), or otherwise properly registered, licensed or permitted by law to carry on business in Manitoba, or if the Bidder does not carry on business in Manitoba, in the jurisdiction where the Bidder does carry on business; and
- (b) be financially capable of carrying out the terms of the Contract; and
- (c) have all the necessary experience, capital, organization, and equipment to perform the Work in strict accordance with the terms and provisions of the Contract.
- B12.2 The Bidder and any proposed Subcontractor (for the portion of the Work proposed to be subcontracted to them) shall:
 - (a) be responsible and not be suspended, debarred or in default of any obligations to the City. A list of suspended or debarred individuals and companies is available on the Information Connection page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Division website at <u>https://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt/Templates/files/debar.pdf</u>
- B12.3 The Bidder and/or any proposed Subcontractor (for the portion of the Work proposed to be subcontracted to them) shall:
 - (a) have successfully carried out work similar in nature, scope and value to the Work;
 - (b) be fully capable of performing the Work required to be in strict accordance with the terms and provisions of the Contract;
 - (c) have a written workplace safety and health program, if required, pursuant to The Workplace Safety and Health Act (Manitoba);
 - (d) have demonstrated the ability to supply and deliver work(s) with quality control and assurance standards according to past contracted delivery and timelines; and
 - (e) have demonstrated the resources, facilities, and capabilities to quickly and efficiently effect repairs or remediation to the satisfaction of the Contract Administrator on issues with Work on previous contracts to meet the specifications and requirements of the supplied Work, regardless of time of year or environmental conditions.
- B12.4 The Bidder shall submit, within three (3) Business Days of a request by the Contract Administrator, proof satisfactory to the Contract Administrator of the qualifications of the Bidder and of any proposed Subcontractor.
- B12.5 The Bidder shall provide, on the request of the Contract Administrator, full access to any of the Bidder's equipment and facilities to confirm, to the Contract Administrator's satisfaction, that the Bidder's equipment and facilities are adequate to perform the Work.
- B12.6 The Bidder shall supply within fourteen (14) Calendar Days of a request from the Contract Administrator sample(s) and / or technical documentation specific to any item or assembly that would be included in the deliverables.
- B12.6.1 The Bidder is responsible for all freight costs associated with the delivery and return of any requested sample(s) as described in B12.6.
- B12.6.2 Unsolicited samples will be returned at Bidder's expense.
- B12.6.3 The Bidder will be notified by the Contract Administrator whether the bid samples and / or technical documentation had any noted deficiencies.
- B12.7 The Bidder may be considered as non-responsive if requested information and / or sample as described in B12.3 or B12.6 is not received within the time frame specified.

B13. OPENING OF BIDS AND RELEASE OF INFORMATION

B13.1 Bids will not be opened publicly.

- B13.2 Following the Submission Deadline, the names of the Bidders and their Total Bid Prices (unevaluated and pending review and verification of conformance with requirements) will be available on the MERX website at <u>www.merx.com</u>.
- B13.3 After award of Contract, the name(s) of the successful Bidder(s) and their Contract amount(s) will be available on the MERX website at <u>www.merx.com</u>.
- B13.4 The Bidder is advised that any information contained in any Bid may be released if required by The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Manitoba), by other authorities having jurisdiction, or by law or by City policy or procedures (which may include access by members of City Council).
- B13.4.1 To the extent permitted, the City shall treat as confidential information, those aspects of a Bid Submission identified by the Bidder as such in accordance with and by reference to Part 2, Section 17 or Section 18 or Section 26 of The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Manitoba), as amended.

B14. IRREVOCABLE BID

- B14.1 The Bid(s) submitted by the Bidder shall be irrevocable for the time period specified in Paragraph 11 of Form A: Bid/Proposal.
- B14.2 The acceptance by the City of any Bid shall not release the Bids of the next two lowest evaluated responsive Bidders and these Bidders shall be bound by their Bids on such Work until a Contract for the Work has been duly formed and the Contract securities have been furnished as herein provided, but any Bid shall be deemed to have lapsed unless accepted within the time period specified in Paragraph 11 of Form A: Bid/Proposal.

B15. WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS

B15.1 A Bidder may withdraw his/her Bid without penalty at any time prior to the Submission Deadline.

B16. EVALUATION OF BIDS

- B16.1 Award of the Contract shall be based on the following bid evaluation criteria:
 - (a) compliance by the Bidder with the requirements of the Tender, or acceptable deviation therefrom (pass/fail);
 - (b) qualifications of the Bidder and the Subcontractors, if any, pursuant to B12 (pass/fail);
 - (c) Total Bid Price;
 - (d) economic analysis of any approved alternative pursuant to B6.
- B16.2 Further to B16.1(a), the Award Authority may reject a Bid as being non-responsive if the Bid Submission is incomplete, obscure or conditional, or contains additions, deletions, alterations or other irregularities. The Award Authority may reject all or any part of any Bid, or waive technical requirements or minor informalities or irregularities if the interests of the City so require.
- B16.3 Further to B16.1(b), the Award Authority shall reject any Bid submitted by a Bidder who does not demonstrate, in his/her Bid or in other information required to be submitted, that he/she is qualified.
- B16.4 Further to B16.1(c), the Total Bid Price shall be the sum of the quantities multiplied by the unit prices for each item shown on Form B: Prices.
- B16.4.1 Further to B16.1(a), in the event that a unit price is not provided on Form B: Prices, the City may determine the unit price by dividing the Amount (extended price) by the approximate quantity, for the purposes of evaluation and payment.
- B16.4.2 Bidders are advised that the calculation indicated in B16.4 will prevail over the Total Bid Price entered in MERX.

B16.5 This Contract will be awarded as a whole.

B17. AWARD OF CONTRACT

- B17.1 The City will give notice of the award of the Contract or will give notice that no award will be made.
- B17.2 The City will have no obligation to award a Contract to a Bidder, even though one or all of the Bidders are determined to be qualified, and the Bids are determined to be responsive.
- B17.2.1 Without limiting the generality of B17.2, the City will have no obligation to award a Contract where:
 - (a) the prices exceed the available City funds for the Work;
 - (b) the prices are materially in excess of the prices received for similar work in the past;
 - (c) the prices are materially in excess of the City's cost to perform the Work, or a significant portion thereof, with its own forces;
 - (d) only one Bid is received; or
 - (e) in the judgment of the Award Authority, the interests of the City would best be served by not awarding a Contract.
- B17.3 Where an award of Contract is made by the City, the award shall be made to the qualified Bidder submitting the lowest evaluated responsive Bid, in accordance with B16.
- B17.4 Further to Paragraph 7 of Form A: Bid/Proposal and C4, the City may issue a purchase order to the successful Bidder in lieu of the execution of a Contract.
- B17.4.1 The Contract Documents, as defined in C1.1(p), in their entirety shall be deemed to be incorporated in and to form a part of the purchase order notwithstanding that they are not necessarily attached to or accompany said purchase order.
- B17.5 Following the award of Contract, a Bidder will be provided with information related to the evaluation of his/her Bid upon written request to the Contract Administrator.

PART C - GENERAL CONDITIONS

C0. GENERAL CONDITIONS

- C0.1 The *General Conditions for the Supply of Goods* (Revision 2020-01-31) are applicable to the Work of the Contract.
- C0.1.1 The General Conditions for the Supply of Goods are available on the Information Connection page at The City of Winnipeg, Corporate Finance, Materials Management Division website at <u>http://www.winnipeg.ca/matmgt/gen_cond.stm</u>
- C0.2 A reference in the Tender to a section, clause or subclause with the prefix "**C**" designates a section, clause or subclause in the *General Conditions for Supply of Goods*.

PART D - SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS

GENERAL

D1. GENERAL CONDITIONS

D1.1 In addition to the *General Conditions for the Supply of Goods*, these Supplemental Conditions are applicable to the Work of the Contract.

D2. SCOPE OF WORK

- D2.1 The Work to be done under the Contract shall consist of supply and delivery of rectangular rapid flashing beacons from date of award until March 31, 2022, with the option of four (4) mutually agreed upon one (1) year extensions.
- D2.1.1 The City may negotiate the extension option with the Proponent within ninety (90) Calendar Days prior to the expiry date of the Contract. The City shall incur no liability to the Proponent as a result of such negotiations.
- D2.1.2 Changes resulting from such negotiations shall become effective on April 1st of the respective year. Changes to the Contract shall not be implemented by the Contractor without written approval by the Contract Administrator.
- D2.1.3 Bidders are advised that, in future, the City may be participating in collaborative procurement initiatives with other levels of government. Accordingly, extensions to this Contract may not be exercised.
- D2.2 The Work shall be done on an "as required" basis during the term of the Contract.
- D2.2.1 The type and quantity of Work to be performed under this Contract shall be as authorized from time to time by the Contract Administrator and/or Users.
- D2.2.2 Subject to C7, the City shall have no obligation under the Contract to purchase any quantity of any item in excess of its actual operational requirements.
- D2.3 Notwithstanding D2.1, in the event that operational changes result in substantial changes to the requirements for Work, the City reserves the right to alter the type or quantity of work performed under this Contract, or to terminate the Contract, upon thirty (30) Calendar Days written notice by the Contract Administrator. In such an event, no claim may be made for damages on the ground of loss of anticipated profit on Work.

D3. COOPERATIVE PURCHASE

- D3.1 The Contractor is advised that this is a cooperative purchase.
- D3.2 The Contract Administrator may, from time to time during the term of the Contract, approve other public sector organizations and utilities, including but not limited to municipalities, universities, schools and hospitals, to be participants in the cooperative purchase.
- D3.3 The Contract Administrator will notify the Contractor of a potential participant and provide a list of the delivery locations and estimated quantities.
- D3.4 If any location of the potential participant is more than ten (10) kilometers beyond the boundaries of the City of Winnipeg, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) Calendar Days of the written notice, notify the Contract Administrator of the amount of any additional delivery charge for the location.
- D3.5 If any additional delivery charges are identified by the Contractor, the potential participant may accept or decline to participate in the cooperative purchase.
- D3.6 The Contractor shall enter into a Contract with each participant under the same terms and conditions as this Contract except:

- (a) supply under the Contract shall not commence until the expiry or lawful termination of any other Contract(s) binding the participant for the same goods;
- (b) a participant may specify a duration of Contract shorter than the duration of this Contract;
- (c) a participant may specify that only some items under this Contract and/or less than its total requirement for an item are to be supplied under its Contract; and
- (d) any additional delivery charge identified and accepted in accordance with clause D3.4 and D3.5 will apply.
- D3.7 Each participant will be responsible for the administration of its Contract and the fulfilment of its obligations under its Contract. The City shall not incur any liability arising from any such Contract.
- D3.8 No participant shall have the right or authority to effect a change in the Contract, or of any other participant in this Contract.

D4. DEFINITIONS

- D4.1 When used in this Tender:
 - (a) "ADA" means Americans with Disabilities Act;
 - (b) "AGM" means Absorbent Glass Mat;
 - (c) "APS" means Accessible Pedestrian Signal;
 - (d) "CSA" means Canadian Standards Association;
 - (e) "FCC" means Federal Communications Commission;
 - (f) "FHWA" means federal Highway Administration;
 - (g) "IAPS" means Integrated Accessible Pedestrian Signal:
 - (h) "IC" means Industry Canada;
 - (i) "IEC" means International Electrotechnical Commission;
 - (j) "ISM" means Industrial, Scientific and Medical frequency band;
 - (k) "MUTCD" means Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices;
 - (I) "NEMA" means National Electrical Manufacturers Association;
 - (m) "PCB" means Printer Circuit Board;
 - (n) "RRFB" means Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon;
 - (o) "SAE" means Society of Automotive Engineers:
 - (p) "UL" means Underwriters Laboratory.

D5. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR

D5.1 The Contract Administrator is:

Vic Hucko Asset Standards and Contract Specialist Telephone No.: 204-986-4191 Email Address: vhucko@winnipeg.ca

D6. NOTICES

D6.1 Except as provided for in C20.4, all notices, requests, nominations, proposals, consents, approvals, statements, authorizations, documents or other communications to the Contractor shall be sent to the address or facsimile number identified by the Contractor in Paragraph 2 of Form A: Bid/Proposal.

- D6.2 All notices, requests, nominations, proposals, consents, approvals, statements, authorizations, documents or other communications to the City, except as expressly otherwise required in, D6.3 or elsewhere in the Contract, shall be sent to the attention of the Contract Administrator identified in D5.
- D6.3 All notices, requests, nominations, proposals, consents, approvals, statements, authorizations, documents or other communications required to be submitted or returned to the City Solicitor shall be sent to the following facsimile number:

The City of Winnipeg Legal Services Department Attn: Director of Legal Services Facsimile No.: 204 947-9155.

SUBMISSIONS

D7. AUTHORITY TO CARRY ON BUSINESS

D7.1 The Contractor shall be in good standing under The Corporations Act (Manitoba), or properly registered under The Business Names Registration Act (Manitoba), or otherwise properly registered, licensed or permitted by law to carry on business in Manitoba, or if the Contractor does not carry on business in Manitoba, in the jurisdiction where the Contractor does carry on business, throughout the term of the Contract, and shall provide the Contract Administrator with evidence thereof upon request.

SCHEDULE OF WORK

D8. COMMENCEMENT

- D8.1 The Contractor shall not commence any Work until he/she is in receipt of a notice of award from the City authorizing the commencement of the Work.
- D8.2 The Contractor shall not commence any Work until:
 - (a) the Contract Administrator has confirmed receipt and approval of:
 - (i) evidence of authority to carry on business specified in D7;
 - (ii) evidence of the workers compensation coverage specified in C6.17.
 - (b) the Contractor has attended a meeting with the Contract Administrator, or the Contract Administrator has waived the requirement for a meeting;
 - (c) a Purchase Order has been received from the City of Winnipeg personnel noting the quantity of material required.

D9. DELIVERY

D9.1 Goods shall be delivered on an "as required" basis during the term of the Contract, f.o.b. destination, freight prepaid, to:

Public Works Stores 1277 Pacific Avenue Winnipeg, MB

- D9.1.1 Goods shall be delivered within forty-five (45) Calendar Days of the placing of an order.
- D9.2 Initial start-up delivery shall be forty-five (45) Calendar Days from the date of award.
- D9.3 After the initial start-up stated in D9.2, Good shall be delivered in accordance with D9.1.1.
- D9.4 The Contractor shall confirm each delivery with the Contract Administrator or his/her designate, at least two (2) Business Days before delivery.

- D9.5 Goods shall be delivered between 8:00 a.m. and 2:30 p.m. on Business Days.
- D9.6 The Contractor shall off-load goods as directed at the delivery location.

D10. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

- D10.1 If the Contractor fails to achieve delivery of the goods within the time specified in D9.1.1 Delivery the Contractor shall pay the City two hundred dollars (\$200.00) per Calendar Day for each and every Calendar Day until the goods have been delivered.
- D10.2 The amount specified for liquidated damages in D10.1 is based on a genuine pre-estimate of the City's damages in the event that the Contractor does not achieve Delivery by the day fixed herein for same.
- D10.3 The City may reduce any payment to the Contractor by the amount of any liquidated damages assessed.

D11. COVID-19 SCHEDULE DELAYS

- D11.1 The City acknowledges that the schedule for this Contract may be impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Commencement and progress of the Work shall be performed by the Contractor with due consideration to the health and safety of workers and the public, directives from health authorities and various levels of government and in close consultation with the Contract Administrator.
- D11.2 If the Contractor is delayed in the performance of the Work by reason of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Work schedule may be adjusted by a period of time equal to the time lost due to such delay and costs related to such delay will be determined as identified herein.
- D11.3 A minimum of seven (7) Calendar Days prior to the commencement of Work, the Contractor shall declare whether COVID-19 will affect the start date. The Contractor shall provide sufficient evidence that the delay is directly related to COVID-19, including but not limited to evidence related to availability of staff, availability of Material or work by others.
- D11.4 For any delay related to COVID-19 and identified after Work has commenced, the Contractor shall within seven (7) Calendar Days of becoming aware of the anticipated delay declare the additional delay and shall provide sufficient evidence as indicated in D11.3. Failure to provide this notice will result in no additional time delays being considered by the City.
- D11.5 The Work schedule, including the durations identified in D9 where applicable, will be adjusted to reflect delays accepted by the Contract Administrator.
- D11.6 Any time or cost implications as a result of COVID-19 and in accordance with the above, as confirmed by the Contract Administrator, shall be documented in accordance with C7.

D12. ORDERS

D12.1 The Contractor shall provide a local Winnipeg telephone number or a toll-free telephone number at which orders for delivery may be placed.

D13. RETURNED GOODS

- D13.1 Further to C7 and C11, The Contract Administrator or his/her designate shall inform the Contractor of the item(s) being returned and the reason for the return. The Contractor shall provide the Contract Administrator with Return Material Authorization (RMA) including shipping instructions, within five (5) Calendar Days of the request.
- D13.2 The Contractor shall be responsible for all transportation charges on returned goods and further to C8 the goods will be held at the Contractor's risk pending instruction.

- D13.3 Further to D13.1 the RMA shall include the following information, as a minimum:
 - (a) Company name, if different than Contractor, and ship to addresses;
 - (b) Written authorization for the return and for a collect shipment;
 - (c) Preference of carrier / shipping method, a contact person with either a local Winnipeg telephone number or a toll-free telephone number;
 - (d) A contact person, responsible for the returned goods, with a toll-free telephone number.
- D13.4 The Contract Administrator shall provide, as a minimum:
 - (a) The City department returning the goods, including an address and contact information for pick up;
 - (b) The City account number; if applicable;
 - (c) The City of Winnipeg's Department and address;
 - (d) Two (2) copies of the written authorization / RMA, one (1) copy on the outside and one (1) one within the package;
 - (e) Total number of packages, weight and dimensions.

D14. RECORDS

- D14.1 The Contractor shall keep detailed records of the goods supplied under the Contract.
- D14.2 The Contractor shall record, as a minimum, for each item listed on Form B: Prices:
 - (a) user name(s) and addresses;
 - (b) order date(s);
 - (c) delivery date(s); and
 - (d) description and quantity of goods supplied.
- D14.3 The Contractor shall provide the Contract Administrator with a copy of the records for each quarter year within fifteen (15) Calendar Days of a request of the Contract Administrator.

MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

D15. INVOICES

D15.1 Further to C10, the Contractor shall submit an invoice for each order delivered to:

The City of Winnipeg Corporate Finance - Accounts Payable 4th Floor, Administration Building, 510 Main Street Winnipeg MB R3B 1B9

Facsimile No.: 204-949-0864 Send Invoices to <u>CityWpgAP-INVOICES@winnipeg.ca</u> Send Invoice Inquiries to <u>CityWpgAP-INQUIRIES@winnipeg.ca</u>

- D15.2 Invoices must clearly indicate, as a minimum:
 - (a) the City's purchase order number;
 - (b) date of delivery;
 - (c) delivery address;
 - (d) type and quantity of goods delivered;
 - (e) the amount payable with GST, MRST, and any applicable environmental handling charges/fees identified and shown as separate amounts; and
 - (f) the Contractor's GST registration number.

D15.3 The City will bear no responsibility for delays in approval of invoices which are improperly submitted.

D16. PAYMENT

D16.1 Further to C10, the City may at its option pay the Contractor by direct deposit to the Contractor's banking institution.

D17. PAYMENT SCHEDULE

D17.1 Further to C10, payment shall be in Canadian funds net thirty (30) Calendar Days after receipt and approval of the Contractor's invoice.

WARRANTY

D18. WARRANTY

D18.1 Notwithstanding C11, the warranty period shall begin on the date of Total Performance and shall expire five (5) years thereafter unless extended pursuant to C11.3, in which case it shall expire when provided for thereunder.

D19. FUNDING AND/OR CONTRIBUTION AGREEMENT OBLIGATIONS

- D19.1 In the event that funding for the Work of the Contract is provided to the City of Winnipeg by the Government of Manitoba and/or the Government of Canada, the following terms and conditions shall apply, as required by the applicable funding agreements.
- D19.2 Further to D19.1, in the event that the obligations in D19 apply, actual costs legitimately incurred by the Contractor as a direct result of these obligations ("Funding Costs") shall be determined by the actual cost to the Contractor and not by the valuation method(s) outlined in C7.4. In all other respects Funding Costs will be processed in accordance with Changes in Work under C7.
- D19.3 For the purposes of D19:
 - (a) **"Government of Canada"** includes the authorized officials, auditors, and representatives of the Government of Canada; and
 - (b) **"Government of Manitoba"** includes the authorized officials, auditors, and representatives of the Government of Manitoba.
- D19.4 Indemnification By Contractor
- D19.4.1 In addition to the indemnity obligations outlined in C15 of the General Conditions for Goods, the Contractor agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Government of Canada and the Government of Manitoba and each of their respective Ministers, officers, servants, employees, and agents from and against all claims and demands, losses, costs, damages, actions, suit or other proceedings brought or pursued in any manner in respect of any matter caused by the Contractor or arising from this Contract or the Work, or from the goods or services provided or required to be provided by the Contractor, except those resulting from the negligence of any of the Government of Canada's or the Government of Manitoba's Ministers, officers, servants, employees, or agents, as the case may be.
- D19.5 Records Retention and Audits
- D19.5.1 The Contractor shall maintain and preserve accurate and complete records in respect of this Contract and the Work, including all accounting records, financial documents, copies of contracts with other parties and other records relating to this Contract and the Work during the term of the Contract and for at least six (6) years after Total Performance. Those records bearing original signatures or professional seals or stamps must be preserved in paper form; other records may be retained in electronic form.

D19.5.2 In addition to the record keeping and inspection obligations outlined in C6 of the General Conditions for Goods, the Contractor shall keep available for inspection and audit at all reasonable times while this Contract is in effect and until at least six (6) years after Total Performance, all records, documents, and contracts referred to in D19.5.1 for inspection, copying and audit by the City of Winnipeg, the Government of Manitoba and/or the Government of Canada and their respective representatives and auditors, and to produce them on demand; to provide reasonable facilities for such inspections, copying and audits, to provide copies of and extracts from such records, documents, or contracts upon request by the City of Winnipeg, the Government of Manitoba, and/or the Government of Canada and their respectives and auditors, and to promptly provide such other information and explanations as may be reasonably requested by the City of Winnipeg, the Government of Canada from time-to-time.

D19.6 Other Obligations

- D19.6.1 The Contractor consents to the City providing a copy of the Contract Documents to the Government of Manitoba and/or the Government of Canada upon request from either entity.
- D19.6.2 If the Lobbyists Registration Act (Manitoba) applies to the Contractor, the Contractor represents and warrants that it has filed a return and is registered and in full compliance with the obligations of that Act, and covenants that it will continue to comply for the duration of this Contract.
- D19.6.3 The Contractor shall comply with all applicable legislation and standards, whether federal, provincial, or municipal, including (without limitation) labour, environmental, and human rights laws, in the course of providing the Work.
- D19.6.4 The Contractor shall properly account for the Work provided under this Contract and payment received in this respect, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in effect in Canada, including those principles and standards approved or recommended from time-to-time by the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada or the Public Sector Accounting Board, as applicable, applied on a consistent basis.
- D19.6.5 The Contractor represents and warrants that no current or former public servant or public office holder, to whom the Value and Ethics Code for the Public Sector, the Policy on Conflict of Interest and Post Employment, or the Conflict of Interest Act applies, shall derive direct benefit from this Contract, including any employment, payments, or gifts, unless the provision or receipt of such benefits is in compliance with such codes and the legislation.
- D19.6.6 The Contractor represents and warrants that no member of the House of Commons or of the Senate of Canada or of the Legislative Assembly of Manitoba is a shareholder, director or officer of the Contractor or of a Subcontractor, and that no such member is entitled to any benefits arising from this Contract or from a contract with the Contractor or a Subcontractor concerning the Work.

PART E - SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL

E1. APPLICABLE SPECIFICATIONS

- E1.1 These Specifications shall apply to the Work.
- E1.2 Bidders are reminded that requests for approval of substitutes as an approved equal or an approved alternative shall be made in accordance with B6. In every instance where a brand name or design specification is used, the City will also consider approved equals and/or approved alternatives in accordance with B6.

E2. GOODS

- E2.1 The Contractor shall supply and deliver rectangular rapid flashing beacons in accordance with the requirements hereinafter specified.
- E2.2 Item No. 1 Solar Powered RRFB shall be as per the following:
- E2.2.1 RRFB System Approvals
 - (a) The RRFB system shall meet the following:
 - (i) MUTCD compliant;
 - (ii) FHWA IA-21 approved.
- E2.2.2 Light Bar
 - (a) The light bar housing shall be constructed of A5052 sheet aluminum and the mounting bracket constructed form 6061-T6 aluminum. The light shall be able to be mounted on a standard octagonal pole by means of 3/4" banding.
 - (b) The dimensions of the bar shall be $24^{\circ} \times 3^{1/16} \times 3^{3/4}$.
 - (c) The light bar d shall be powered coated Traffic Yellow.
 - (d) Light bar shall have two (2) SAE Class 1 light intensity LED's measuring 3" x 7" mounted at each end of the bar.
 - (e) Light bar shall have two (2) Tell Tale SAE Class 1 light intensity LED's measuring 1" x 2" mounted at each side end of the bar.
 - (f) All LED's shall be Amber and powered by 12 Vdc nominal.
 - (g) Light bar shall follow and conform to ITE VTSCH-STD 2005.
 - (h) The Rectangular LED Modules shall be SAE J595 and SAE-J578 certified/compliant.
 - (i) The Rectangular LED Modules shall self-incapsulated in a non-fogging plastic enclosure.

E2.2.3 Communication

- (a) The RRFB shall be able to communicate to addition units by selecting one (1) of sixteen (16) unique addresses.
- (b) The RRFB shall operate in the ISM band of 902 928 MHz with a communication range of 480 m line of sight.
- (c) RRFD shall be FCC and IC compliant.
- E2.2.4 Environmental Specification
 - (a) Operational between temperatures of -40°C to +74°C.
- E2.2.5 Solar Engine Housing
 - (a) The solar engine housing shall be constructed of A5052 sheet aluminum and designed to house the following:

- (i) RRFB controller;
- (ii) Two (2) batteries;
- (iii) Solar cells;
- (iv) Antenna;
- (v) Interconnections.
- (b) Housing color shall be Traffic Yellow.
- (c) The housing shall be mounted on a $1\frac{1}{2}$ " NPS top of a 10' octagonal pole.
- (d) The housing shall have a mounting angle of 44° when mounted.
- (e) Hosing dimensions shall be $30^{7}/_{8}$ x $13^{1}/_{4}$ x $4^{1}/_{2}$.
- (f) The mount shall be constructed of 6061-T6 aluminum.
- (g) The housing shall come with a 2¹/₂" round collar mount.

E2.2.6 Controller

- (a) The controller shall have the capability to perform onboard diagnostics for battery and solar power input.
- (b) The controller shall incorporate an internal watchdog to restart the system in case of disruption by surges or lightning.
- (c) The controller unit shall be FCC EMC Class A approved, and MUTCD and FHWA compliant, as per Memorandum IA-21, Interim Approval for Optional Use of Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons.
- (d) The controller shall be able to drive two (2) LED Light Bars with the capability to expand to six (6) outputs.
- (e) At a minimum the controller shall come with the ability to flash light bars in a rapidly alternating "wig-wag" flashing sequence (left light on, then right light on) as per the WW+S pattern specified by FHWA IA-21, which is a pattern based on a flash cycle length of 800 milliseconds, which results in 75 flash cycles per minute.
- (f) The controller shall have the capability to select one (1) of Sixteen (16) addresses for communication.
- (g) The controller shall be compatible with and accept activation from any mechanical and piezo pushbutton or integrated APS system. Integrated APS is defined a APS system that contains pushbutton, speaker and APS PCB all housed within one (1) enclosure.
- (h) The controller shall have the capability to select a flash duration from 5 seconds to 4 hours.
- E2.2.7 Power Requirements
 - (a) The solar cells shall be rated for 40 watts (output voltage = 18 Vdc @ 2.2 Amps).
 - (b) The unit shall have two (2) AGM batteries. Batteries shall be 12 Vdc, 16 AHr rated for -40°C to +74°C.
 - (c) The RRFB shall have automatic light control function and be able to adjust brightness for varying ambient conditions and battery levels.
 - (d) The system shall have a low voltage protection of 9.5 Vdc with a 1.8amp auto-resettable fuse for over current protection.
 - (e) The units shall be able to withstand a minimum of 20 days without charge with an average rated usage of 300 cycles per day with a 20-second activation duration wired to a standard mechanical pushbutton.
- E2.3 Item No. 2 AC Powered RRFB shall be as per the following:
- E2.3.1 RRFB System Approvals
 - (a) The RRFB system shall meet the following:

- (i) MUTCD compliant;
- (ii) FHWA IA-21 approved.

E2.3.2 Light Bar

- (a) The light bar housing shall be constructed of A5052 sheet aluminum and the mounting bracket constructed form 6061-T6 aluminum. The light shall be able to be mounted on a standard octagonal pole by means of banding.
- (b) The dimensions of the bar shall be 24" x $3^{1/16}$ " x $3^{3/4}$ ".
- (c) The light bar shall be powered coated Traffic Yellow.
- (d) Light bar shall have two (2) SAE Class 1 light intensity LED's measuring 3" x 7" mounted at each end of the bar.
- (e) Light bar shall have two (2) Tell Tale SAE Class 1 light intensity LED's measuring 1" x 2" mounted at each side end of the bar.
- (f) All LED's shall be Amber and powered by 12 Vdc nominal.
- (g) Light bar shall follow and conform to ITE VTSCH-STD 2005.
- (h) The Rectangular LED Modules shall be SAE J595 and SAE-J578 certified/compliant.
- (i) The Rectangular LED Modules shall self-incapsulated in a non-fogging plastic enclosure.

E2.3.3 Communication

- (a) The RRFB shall be able to communicate to addition units by selecting one (1) of sixteen (16) unique addresses.
- (b) The RRFB shall operate in the ISM band of 902 928 MHz with a communication range of 480 m line of sight.
- (c) RRFD shall be FCC and IC compliant.
- E2.3.4 Environmental Specification
 - (a) Operational between temperatures of -40°C to +74°C.

E2.3.5 Enclosure

- (a) The solar engine housing shall be constructed of 0.08" Type 5052 H-32 sheet aluminum and designed to house the following:
 - (i) RRFB controller;
 - (ii) AC to DC converter;
 - (iii) Antenna;
 - (iv) Interconnections.
- (b) Enclosure color shall be Traffic Yellow.
- (c) The enclosure shall be mounted on a standard 10' octagonal pole by via ³/₄" banding.
- (d) Enclosure dimensions shall be 12" x 12" x 4".
- (e) Approved and compliance to the following standards:
 - (i) UL 508 Type 3R, 4, 4X, 12 AND 13;
 - (ii) CSA Type 3R, 4, 4X 12 AND 13;
 - (iii) NEMA Type 3R, 4, 4X 12 AND 13;
 - (iv) JIC EGP-1-1967;
 - (v) IEC 60529, IP66.

- (a) The controller shall have the capability to perform onboard diagnostics for battery and solar power input.
- (b) The controller shall incorporate an internal watchdog to restart the system in case of disruption by surges or lightning.
- (c) The controller unit shall be FCC EMC Class A approved, and MUTCD and FHWA compliant, as per Memorandum IA-21, Interim Approval for Optional Use of Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons.
- (d) The controller shall be able to drive two (2) LED Light Bars with the capability to expand to six (6) outputs.
- (e) At a minimum the controller shall come with the ability to flash light bars in a rapidly alternating "wig-wag" flashing sequence (left light on, then right light on) as per the WW+S pattern specified by FHWA IA-21, which is a pattern based on a flash cycle length of 800 milliseconds, which results in 75 flash cycles per minute.
- (f) The controller shall have the capability to select one (1) of Sixteen (16) addresses for communication.
- (g) The controller shall be compatible with and accept activation from any mechanical and piezo pushbutton or integrated APS system. Integrated APS is defined a APS system that contains pushbutton, speaker and APS PCB all housed within one (1) enclosure.
- (h) The controller shall have the capability to select a flash duration from 5 seconds to 4 hours.

E2.3.7 Power Requirements

- (a) The AC converter shall take 120 Vac and convert to 15 Vdc. The AC-DC converter module shall be class 2 rated and be approved IP67 standard.
- (b) The RRFB shall have automatic light control function and be able to adjust brightness for varying ambient conditions and battery levels.
- (c) The system shall have a 1.8amp PTC auto-resettable fuse for over current protection.

E2.4 Item No. 3 – RRFB Light Bar

E2.4.1 Light Bar

- (a) The light bar housing shall be constructed of A5052 sheet aluminum and the mounting bracket constructed form 6061-T6 aluminum. The light shall be able to be mounted on a standard octagonal pole by means of banding.
- (b) The dimensions of the bar shall be 24" x $3^{1/16}$ " x $3^{3/4}$ ".
- (c) The light bar d shall be powered coated Traffic Yellow.
- (d) Light bar shall have two (2) SAE Class 1 light intensity LED's measuring 3" x 7" mounted at each end of the bar.
- (e) Light bar shall have two (2) Tell Tale SAE Class 1 light intensity LED's measuring 1" x 2" mounted at each side end of the bar.
- (f) All LED's shall be Amber and powered by 12 Vdc nominal.
- (g) Light bar shall come with all hardware and cabling requirements to connect to the Solar powered or AC powered RRFB Controllers.
- (h) Light bar shall follow and conform to ITE VTSCH-STD 2005.
- (i) The Rectangular LED Modules shall be SAE J595 and SAE-J578 certified/compliant.
- (j) The Rectangular LED Modules shall self-incapsulated in a non-fogging plastic enclosure.
- E2.5 Training
 - (a) Training shall be conducted within sixty (60) Calendar Days of award and be conducted remotely.

- (b) Trainers shall be factory trained and authorized by the manufacturer.
- (c) The manufacturer-provided training shall consist of but not limited to:
 - (i) Intersection design;
 - (ii) Installation;
 - (iii) Remote and field troubleshooting;
 - (iv) Regular maintenance requirements.
- E2.6 Maintenance and Technical Support
 - (a) Manufacturer-provided technical support shall be available via a toll-free number, and a certified technical representative shall be remotely available to assist with the physical installation and configuration. Technical support shall be provided thereafter to assist with troubleshooting, maintenance, or replacement of RRFB should such services be required.
 - (b) The manufacturer shall make available free firmware upgrades and software upgrades for the RRFB and assembly till the end of the product life of any product line. The upgrades shall be made available on-line through the manufacturer's website.

E3. APPROVED PRODUCTS

- E3.1 Subject to E1.2, the following products are approved:
- E3.1.1 Item No. 1 JSF Technologies Model: AB-9207-40W
- E3.1.2 Item No. 2 JSF Technologies Model: AB-9207-AC
- E3.1.3 Item No. 3 JSF Technologies Part Number: 902953